
Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

October 8, 2021 – Noon  

Bartlett Regional Hospital – Zoom Meeting 

Agenda 

 

Mission Statement 

Bartlett Regional Hospital provides its community with quality, patient-centered care in a sustainable manner. 

 
 

Public may participate via the following link: https://bartletthospital.zoom.us/j/98393405781 
 or by calling 1-888-788-0099, Meeting ID: 983 9340 5781 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 10, 2021 Minutes     Page 2      
          

1. August 2021 Financial Statements Review  
A. August Financial Summary       Page 4 
B. Statistics          Page 5 
C. Financial Indicators        Page 6 
D. Income Statement        Page 7 
E. Revenue Worksheet        Page 8 
F. Wages          Page 9 
G. Balance Sheet         Page 10 
H. Accounts Receivable         Page 11 
I. Write-Offs         Page 12 

         
2. Surprise Billing Act         Page 13  

 
3. New Provider Relief Funds         

 
Next Meeting: Friday, November 12, 2021 at 12:00 via Zoom 
 
Committee member comments / questions 
 
ADJOURN   

1/38



 

Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

water 

3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 

 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

Zoom Meeting – August 13, 2021 

 

Called to order at 12:09 p.m. by Finance Chair, Deb Johnston. 

 

Finance Committee (*) & Board Members present: Deb Johnston*, Brenda Knapp*, Lance Stevens*, 

Rosemary Hagevig, Hal Geiger, Kenny Solomon-Gross, and Iola Young.  

Staff & Others: Rose Lawhorne, CEO, Kevin Benson, CFO, Bradley Grigg, CBHO, Kim McDowell, 

CNO, Dallas Hargrave, HR Director, Vlad Toca, COO, Blessy Robert, Director of Accounting, Seanna 

O’Sullivan, Megan Rinkenberger, Kris Muller, Gage Thompson, and Lori Holte. (All attended via Zoom) 
 

Public Comment: None 

 

Ms. Knapp made a MOTION to approve the minutes from the August 13, 2021 Finance Committee 

Meeting. Mr. Stevens seconded, and they were approved. 

 

July 2021 Financial Review – Kevin Benson, CFO 
 Bartlett Regional Hospital had a financially good start to the 2022 fiscal year. The budget for 

2022 fiscal year incorporated the impacts related to Covid-19 so many of the variances that have been 

reported for the past 16 months are no longer apparent. There continues to be a shift from inpatient to 

outpatient volumes and revenues. Inpatient revenues were under budget by 8.6% while outpatient 

revenues were over budget by 5.6%. However, total patient revenue finished $91,000 over budget (0.6%). 

After Rainforest, BHOPS and physician revenue, the month ended just slightly under budget for Gross 

Patient Revenue at -0.4%. 

Deductions from revenue had a favorable variance of $1.0 million (12.9%). This was driven in 

the inpatient side by a lower length of stay while on the outpatient side there were lower charges per case. 

Net Patient Revenue finished well ahead of budget with positive variance of $962,000 (9.9%). 

Other Operating Revenue was well below budget with the loss of 340B revenue and lower grant revenues. 

As a result, Total Operating Revenue finished at $332,000 (3.1%) greater than budget. 

Total Expenses were very close to budget finishing $48,000 (0.4%) under budget yielding an 

Operating Income of $201,000 as compared to a budgeted Operating Loss of -$179,000. After Non-

Operating Income the Final Net Income was $434,000 for almost a 4% margin. 

Expense variances incurred in July were as follows: 

 Contract Labor was $159,000 over budget as the hospital struggles to maintain staffing levels. 

 Physician Contracts were $196,000 over budget as additional mental health providers are needed 

to provide for increased volumes. 

 Supply costs were $180,000 over budget driven primarily by increased pharmaceuticals for 

increased Infusion Therapy services and Covid-19 related drugs. 

 Molecular Testing volumes have increased from 50 tests per day to anywhere from 200 to 300. 

 

Supplemental Appropriation 
 BRH will go to the assembly due to overspending our budget by $20.9M, mostly due to Covid-19 

related expenses. The CBJ assembly finance department will take this up on the 29th, the day after the BOD 

2/38



 

Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

meeting. The document in the packet defines the reason for the overages as well as what will cover the 

overage. 

 

Mr. Stevens made a MOTION to recommend the Supplemental Appropriation be moved to the Board for 

final approval. Ms. Knapp seconded. 

 

Bond Issue Update 

 Work is being done to secure bond funding for BRH. There was a credit assessment completed by 

CBJ financial advisors that determined it would be most favorable for BRH to seek bond issue through the 

Alaska Bond Bank. BRH is in communication with Alaska Bond Bank to accomplish this. If bond proceeds 

were used to purchase a building, and the building were occupied by a for-profit entity, the bonds would 

lose their tax exempt status. Instead, BRH will use Crisis Stabilization funds for purchase of a building, 

then bond Crisis Stabilization project and ED expansion and remodel, which eliminated the tax issue. 

Bonding and building of crisis stabilization don’t exactly coincide. Bond funds can only be used on capital 

projects. CBJ assembly passed a resolution authorizing the finance director to sign an official intent 

certificate which protects the ability to reimburse ourselves. 

 

Capital Budget Update 
There was $5M in spending included in Capital Budget. The single largest item in the capital budget 

is the replacement of two CT Scanners. However, replacement lighting and tower equipment holding 

surgical equipment in the OR needs to be replaced. BRH will still replace two CT scanners but one will be 

delayed until FY2023.  This will free up the funds to provide for an upgrade of the Operating Rooms.  

There are three operating rooms, one of which is being used for storage. The plan is to replace 

lights and tower in the room used as storage, then start replacing the others so that no operating suite is 

taken out of service. This provides for operational flexibility and space for simulated training in a real 

environment. Three separate items would move into a single boom with electrical coming from the ceiling. 

This provides for greater safety, cleaning, and aesthetics. Lights will be replaced as well to improve work 

environment, surgical visibility and precision, and allow for future upgrades. The Finance Committee 

expressed their support of this change. 

 

Next Meeting: Friday, October 8th, 2021 at 12:00 via Zoom 

 

Board Comments: Staff and board members expressed their gratitude for the hard work Kevin and the rest 

of the Finance team at BRH do. 

 

Adjourned – 12:51 p.m.  

3/38



Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 

 
 
 

DATE: October 4, 2021 

TO: BRH Finance Committee 

FROM: Kevin Benson, Chief Financial Officer 

RE: August Financial Performance 

 

 

Bartlett Regional Hospital had a busy month with the highest number of Covid-19 patients it has cared for 

during this pandemic. Inpatient revenue for the month was down $635,000 (-11%) from budget in August. The 

departments of CCU, MHU, Obstetrics and Rainforest contributed to this shortfall. This is consistent with the 

related departmental statistics which were also down. Opposite of that, Outpatient revenue was greater than 

budget by $766,000 (7.4%) driven by increases in many departments but particularly Emergency Department 

visits, BOPS visits and Lab tests (molecular). This left Total Hospital Patient Revenue $268,000 (1.5%) ahead 

of budget. After Rainforest, BHOPS and physician revenue, the month ended $268,000 (1.5%) ahead of budget 

for Gross Patient Revenue.   

Deductions from revenue were almost right on budget consistent with revenue finishing close to budget. 

Net Patient Revenue finished ahead of budget with positive variance of $271,000 (2.8%). Other Operating 

Revenue was well below budget with the loss of 340B revenue and lower grant revenues. As a result, Total 

Operating Revenue finished at $-215,000 (-2.0%) less than budget. 

Total Expenses were over budget, finishing $-204,000 (-1.9%) yielding an Operating Loss of $498,000 as 

compared to a budgeted Operating Loss of -$79,000. After Non-Operating Income the Final Net Loss was $-

330,000 for a minus -3.8% margin. After two months, the Net Income is $126,000 for a 0.59% margin. 

Expense variances incurred in August were as follows: 

 Contract Labor was $44,000 over budget as the hospital struggles to maintain staffing levels. 

 Physician Contracts were $288,000 over budget as additional mental health providers are needed to 

provide for increased volumes. 

 Supply costs were $285,000 over budget, driven almost exclusively by increased pharmaceuticals for 

increased Infusion Therapy services and Covid-19 related drugs. 

 Molecular Testing volumes have increased dramatically generating $497,000 in revenue as opposed to 

$48,000 in the budget. 

   

4/38



Y:\Financial Analysis\FY 22 Financial Analysis\Dashboards\02 Dashboard Report August 21 Page 1

Actual Budget

% Over 
(Under) 
Budget Prior Year

% Over 
(Under) Pr 

Yr Actual Budget

% Over 
(Under) 
Budget Prior Year 

Hospital Inpatient:Patient Days
Patient Days - Med/Surg 459 378 21% 345 33.0% 929 756 23% 727
Patient Days - Critical Care Unit 89 101 -12% 103 -13.6% 181 202 -10% 207
Avg. Daily Census - Acute 17.7 15.5 14% 14.5 22.3% 17.9 15.5 16% 15.1

Patient Days - Obstetrics 54 63 -15% 68 -20.6% 137 127 8% 141
Patient Days - Nursery 43 52 -18% 58 -25.9% 108 105 3% 109
Total Hospital Patient Days 645 595 8% 574 12.4% 1,355 1,190 14% 1,184
Births 26 26 1% 28 -7.1% 55 51 7% 57

Mental Health Unit
Patient Days - Mental Health Unit 116 248 -53% 132 -12.1% 277 496 -44% 269
Avg. Daily Census - MHU 3.7 8.0 -53% 4.3 -12.1% 4.5 8.0 -44% 4.3

Rain Forest Recovery:
Patient Days - RRC 171 248 -31% 0 0.0% 371 496 -25% 0
Avg. Daily Census - RRC 6 8.0 -31% 0 0.0% 6 8.0 -25% 0.0
Outpatient visits 49 88 -44% 67 -26.9% 94 176 -46% 88

Inpatient: Admissions 
Med/Surg 79 58 36% 49 61.2% 149 116 29% 120
Critical Care Unit 38 36 5% 32 18.8% 77 72 6% 65
Obstetrics 29 28 5% 27 7.4% 62 55 13% 61
Nursery 26 26 1% 28 -7.1% 55 51 7% 57
Mental Health Unit 26 21 23% 22 18.2% 51 42 21% 38
Total Admissions - Inpatient Status 198 168 18% 158 25.3% 394 337 17% 341

Admissions -"Observation" Status
Med/Surg 66 63 5% 52 26.9% 149 126 19% 110
Critical Care Unit 21 27 -21% 24 -12.5% 42 53 -21% 48
Mental Health Unit 2 2 -16% 3 -33.3% 6 5 26% 7
Obstetrics 13 14 -9% 14 -7.1% 33 29 16% 28
Nursery 0 0 0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0% 0
Total Admissions to Observation 102 106 -4% 93 -20.3% 230 212 8% 193

Surgery:
Inpatient Surgery Cases 44 50 -12% 46 -4.3% 104 101 3% 103
Endoscopy Cases 98 89 10% 78 25.6% 181 178 2% 153
Same Day Surgery Cases 115 119 -3% 109 5.5% 217 237 -9% 252
Total Surgery Cases 257 258 0% 233 10.3% 502 516 -3% 508
Total Surgery Minutes 15,346 18,480 -17% 16,827 -8.8% 32,550 36,961 -12% 37,145

Outpatient:
Total Outpatient Visits (Hospital)
Emergency Department Visits 1,158 968 20% 991 16.9% 2,394 1,935 24% 2,024
Cardiac Rehab Visits 52 58 -10% 48 8.3% 151 116 30% 98
Lab Visits 1,583 292 442% 289 447.8% 2,211 585 278% 553
Lab Tests 9,774 9,940 -2% 9,163 6.7% 20,000 19,880 1% 19,246
Radiology Visits 906 815 11% 727 24.6% 1,731 1,629 6% 1,533
Radiology Tests 2,537 2,371 7% 2,063 23.0% 4,913 4,743 4% 4,393
Sleep Study Visits 24 23 5% 25 -4.0% 53 46 16% 59

Physician Clinics:
Hospitalists 252              236 7% 173           45.7% 496    472 5% 536             
Bartlett Oncology Clinic 94                86 10% 77             22.1% 190    172 11% 158             
Ophthalmology Clinic 123              95                 30% 98             25.5% 201    190 6% 205             
Behavioral Health Outpatient visits 626              408 54% 355           76.3% 1,201 815 47% 727             
Bartlett Surgery Specialty Clinic visits 242              232 4% 190           27.4% 447    464 -4% 412             

1,337           1,056            27% 893           49.7% 2,535 2,112    20% 2,038          
Other Operating Indicators:
Dietary Meals Served 15,180 20,134 -25% 19,552 -3.3% 30,879 40,267 -23% 37,448
Laundry Pounds (Per 100) 402 381 5% 364 1.0% 800 762 5% 740

Bartlett Regional Hospital
Dashboard Report for August 2021

Facility Utilization:

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE

5/38



Y:\Financial Analysis\FY 22 Financial Analysis\Dashboards\02 Dashboard Report August 21 Page 1

Actual Budget

% Over 
(Under) 
Budget Prior Year Actual Budget

% Over 
(Under) 
Budget Prior Year 

Financial Indicators:
Revenue Per Adjusted Patient Day 4,669 5,166 -9.6% 4,002 5,068 10,332 -51.0% 8,642

Contractual Allowance % 40.5% 43.6% -7.2% 37.6% 38.3% 43.6% -12.2% 45.6%
Bad Debt & Charity Care % 3.7% 1.3% 179.6% -0.1% 3.5% 1.3% 159.8% -0.1%

Wages as a % of Net Revenue 48.4% 52.1% -7.0% 49.7% 47.0% 52.1% -9.7% 53.4%

Productive Staff Hours Per Adjusted Patient Day 24.2 25.0 -3.3% 22.8 26.1 47.8 -45.5% 42.4
Non-Productive Staff Hours Per Adjusted Patient Day 3.6 3.8 -7.1% 3.6 3.9 7.3 -46.5% 6.8
Overtime/Premium % of Productive 5.84% 2.99% 95.3% 2.99% 6.39% 5.26% 21.5% 5.26%

Days Cash on Hand 55 57 -2.4% 114 55 57 -2.3% 111
Board Designated Days Cash on Hand 157 161 -2.4% 130 157 161 -2.3% 130

Days in Net Receivables 51.4 51 0.0% 66 51.4 51 0.0% 66

Actual Benchmark
% Over 
(Under)

Prior Year 
Month

Total debt-to-capitalization (with PERS) 57.7% 33.7% 71.3% 61.9%
Total debt-to-capitalization (without PERS) 14.4% 33.7% -57.1% 15.7%

Current Ratio 5.21           2.00             160.7% 7.26              

Debt-to-Cash Flow (with PERS) 10.21         2.7              278.1% 9.17              
Debt-to-Cash Flow (without PERS) 2.56           2.7              -5.3% 2.32              

Aged A/R 90 days & greater 42.7% 19.8% 115.7% 48.3%
Bad Debt Write off 1.2% 0.8% 50.0% -0.5%
Cash Collections 89.6% 99.4% -9.9% 98.4%
Charity Care Write off 0.4% 1.4% -71.4% 1.6%
Cost of Collections (Hospital only) 4.1% 2.8% 46.4% 4.5%
Discharged not Final Billed (DNFB) 11.8% 4.7% 151.1% 13.8%
Unbilled & Claims on Hold (DNSP) 11.8% 5.1% 131.4% 13.8%
Claims final billed not submitted to payor (FBNS) 0.0% 0.2% -100.0% 0.00%
POS Cash Collection 2.9% 21.3% -86.4% 0.0%

Bartlett Regional Hospital
Dashboard Report for August 2021

Facility Utilization:

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE

6/38



MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET   MO $ VAR  MTD % VAR          PR YR MO                                                         YTD ACTUAL     YTD BUDGET     YTD $ VAR YTD % VAR          

PRIOR YTD 
ACT     

PRIOR YTD  
% CHG

                                                                            Gross Patient Revenue:                                                                                                           
$3,831,558 $4,617,397 -$785,839 -17.0% $3,469,388 1.   Inpatient Revenue                            $7,893,064 $9,234,791 -$1,341,727 -14.5% $7,509,056 5.1%
$1,169,065 $1,018,709 $150,356 14.8% $896,443 2.   Inpatient Ancillary Revenue                  $2,257,173 $2,037,414 $219,759 10.8% $1,919,084 17.6%
$5,000,623 $5,636,106 -$635,483 -11.3% $4,365,831 3.   Total Inpatient Revenue                      $10,150,237 $11,272,205 -$1,121,968 -10.0% $9,428,140 7.7%

                                                                                                                                                                                                             
$11,142,418 $10,376,490 $765,928 7.4% $9,174,995 4.   Outpatient Revenue                           $22,096,816 $20,752,996 $1,343,820 6.5% $19,852,402 11.3%

$16,143,041 $16,012,596 $130,445 0.8% $13,540,826 5.   Total Patient Revenue - Hospital             $32,247,053 $32,025,201 $221,852 0.7% $29,280,542 10.1%
                                                                                                                                                                                                   

$300,261 $348,955 -$48,695 -14.0% $5,885 6.   RRC Patient Revenue $577,425 $697,907 -$120,482 -17.3% $8,279 6874.6%
$355,268 $274,958 $80,310 29.2% $184,585 7.   BHOPS Patient Revenue $734,504 $549,918 $184,586 33.6% $385,217 90.7%

$1,182,691 $1,076,405 $106,286 9.9% $845,130 8.   Physician Revenue                            $2,069,896 $2,152,813 -$82,917 -3.9% $2,125,619 -2.6%

$17,981,261 $17,712,914 $268,346 1.5% $14,576,426 9.   Total Gross Patient Revenue                  $35,628,878 $35,425,839 $203,039 0.6% $31,799,657 12.0%

                                                                             Deductions from Revenue:                                                                
$2,716,381 $3,108,552 $392,171 12.6% $2,390,887 10.  Inpatient Contractual Allowance              $5,334,689 $5,992,101 $657,412 11.0% $5,997,118 -11.0%
-$225,000 -$225,000 $0 -$308,333   10a.  Rural Demonstration Project -$225,000 -$225,000 $0 -$308,333

$4,163,123 $4,119,123 -$44,000 -1.1% $2,814,255 11.  Outpatient Contractual Allowance $7,372,176 $8,238,242 $866,066 10.5% $7,415,637 -0.6%
$627,808 $723,981 $96,173 13.3% $581,642 12.  Physician Service Contractual Allowance $1,160,041 $1,447,963 $287,922 19.9% $1,396,504 -16.9%

$22,266 $14,826 -$7,440 -50.2% $14,847 13.  Other Deductions                             $49,755 $29,652 -$20,103 -67.8% $24,661 0.0%
$73,565 $132,263 $58,699 44.4% $232,980 14.  Charity Care                                 $142,489 $264,527 $122,038 46.1% $393,270 -63.8%

$596,260 $103,725 -$492,535 -474.8% -$247,358 15.  Bad Debt Expense                             $1,090,505 $207,450 -$883,055 -425.7% -$416,654 -361.7%

$7,974,403 $7,977,470 $3,068 0.0% $5,478,920 16.  Total Deductions from Revenue                $14,924,655 $15,954,935 $1,030,280 6.5% $14,502,203 2.9%
40.5% 44.9% 39.7% % Contractual Allowances / Total Gross Patient Revenue 38.3% 44.3% 45.6%

3.7% 1.3% -0.1% % Bad Debt & Charity Care / Total Gross Patient Revenue 3.5% 1.3% -0.1%
44.3% 45.0% 37.6% % Total Deductions / Total Gross Patient Revenue 41.9% 45.0% 45.6%

$10,006,858 $9,735,444 $271,414 2.8% $9,097,506 17.  Net Patient Revenue                          $20,704,223 $19,470,904 $1,233,319 6.3% $17,297,454 19.7%

$364,698 $850,641 -$485,943 -57.1% $1,426,349 18.  Other Operating Revenue                      $749,434 $1,701,275 -$951,841 -55.9% $3,065,415 -75.6%

$10,371,556 $10,586,085 -$214,529 -2.0% $10,523,855 19.  Total Operating Revenue                      $21,453,657 $21,172,179 $281,478 1.3% $20,362,869 5.4%
                                                                             Expenses:                                                                                                                       

$4,350,677 $4,649,585 $298,908 6.4% $4,032,983 20.  Salaries & Wages                             $8,638,118 $9,299,168 $661,050 7.1% $8,236,054 4.9%
$349,470 $317,590 -$31,880 -10.0% $332,967 21.  Physician Wages                              $689,517 $635,181 -$54,336 -8.6% $635,567 8.5%
$146,297 $101,317 -$44,980 -44.4% $158,173 22.  Contract Labor                               $406,383 $202,632 -$203,751 -100.6% $359,385 13.1%

$2,363,594 $2,388,655 $25,062 1.0% $2,174,366 23.  Employee Benefits                            $4,755,384 $4,777,315 $21,931 0.5% $4,281,179 11.1%
$7,210,038 $7,457,147 $247,110 3.3% $6,698,489 $14,489,402 $14,914,296 $424,894 2.8% $13,512,185 7.2%

69.5% 70.4% 63.7% % Salaries and Benefits / Total Operating Revenue 67.5% 70.4% 66.4%

$89,756 $86,004 -$3,752 -4.4% $115,987 24.  Medical Professional Fees                    $137,368 $172,003 $34,635 20.1% $211,398 -35.0%
$463,251 $175,005 -$288,246 -164.7% $150,915 25.  Physician Contracts                          $834,217 $350,011 -$484,206 -138.3% $245,702 239.5%
$199,537 $246,955 $47,418 19.2% $156,025 26.  Non-Medical Professional Fees                $314,931 $493,911 $178,980 36.2% $331,794 -5.1%

$1,541,901 $1,256,670 -$285,231 -22.7% $1,376,078 27.  Materials & Supplies                         $3,120,445 $2,513,343 -$607,102 -24.2% $3,121,009 0.0%
$105,215 $132,424 $27,210 20.5% $112,925 28.  Utilities                                    $231,732 $264,839 $33,107 12.5% $207,120 11.9%
$361,725 $383,893 $22,168 5.8% $497,665 29.  Maintenance & Repairs                        $783,742 $767,784 -$15,958 -2.1% $914,997 -14.3%

$43,326 $38,827 -$4,499 -11.6% $41,169 30.  Rentals & Leases                             $95,256 $77,652 -$17,604 -22.7% $100,860 -5.6%
$68,839 $56,108 -$12,731 -22.7% $42,665 31.  Insurance                                    $150,163 $112,216 -$37,947 -33.8% $86,731 73.1%

$607,718 $648,350 $40,632 6.3% $672,260 32.  Depreciation & Amortization                  $1,217,767 $1,296,698 $78,931 6.1% $1,343,268 -9.3%
$49,154 $50,903 $1,750 3.4% $50,909 33.  Interest Expense                             $98,512 $101,805 $3,293 3.2% $102,031 -3.4%

$129,278 $133,292 $4,014 3.0% $22,400 34.  Other Operating Expenses                     $255,889 $266,572 $10,683 4.0% $186,077 37.5%
$10,869,738 $10,665,578 -$204,157 -1.9% $9,937,487 35.  Total Expenses                               $21,729,424 $21,331,130 -$398,294 -1.9% $20,363,172 -6.7%

-$498,182 -$79,493 -$418,689 526.7% $586,368 36.  Income (Loss) from Operations                -$275,767 -$158,951 -$116,816 73.5% -$303 90912.2%
                                                                                     Non-Operating Revenue                                                                                                    

$104,340 $169,863 -$65,523 -38.6% $102,643 37.  Interest Income                              $204,718 $339,726 -$135,009 -39.7% $204,478 0.1%
$63,838 $77,064 -$13,226 -17.2% $75,801 38.  Other Non-Operating Income                   $196,582 $154,131 $42,451 27.5% $151,392 29.8%

$168,178 $246,927 -$78,749 -31.9% $178,444 39.  Total Non-Operating Revenue                  $401,300 $493,857 -$92,557 -18.7% $355,870 12.8%
                                                  

-$330,004 $167,434 -$497,438 297.1% $764,812 40.  Net Income (Loss)                            $125,533 $334,906 -$209,373 62.5% $355,567 64.7%

-4.80% -0.75% 5.57% Income from Operations Margin -1.29% -0.75% 0.00%
-3.18% 1.58% 7.27% Net Income 0.59% 1.58% 1.75%

BARTLETT REGIONAL HOSPITAL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR TO DATE OF AUGUST 2021

7/38



Financial  Group In-Pt  Actual In-PT Budget Out-Pt Actual
Out-Pt 
Budget

Physician 
Actual

Physician 
Budget Total Actual Total Budget

Aetna 292,354        435,432        1,656,685     1,748,176     163,667        187,781        2,112,706      2,371,389     
Blue Cross 636,043        576,840        1,844,257     1,843,057     221,825        230,462        2,702,125      2,650,359     
Comm 10,768          122,198        383,388        345,546        53,455          65,282          447,611         533,026        
MCD 2,054,254     2,222,175     2,487,268     2,055,773     327,130        304,068        4,868,652      4,582,016     
MCR 1,719,426     2,173,051     3,607,975     3,422,499     635,823        441,657        5,963,224      6,037,207     
Other 263,777        107,105        404,529        318,105        3,901             11,292          672,206         436,502        
SEARHC 14,667          52,791          150,191        111,673        29,987          9,011             194,845         173,475        
Self 52,242          98,402          339,027        188,348        11,127          13,470          402,397         300,220        
VA/Cham -                 64,064          184,236        203,879        62,202          59,752          246,438         327,695        
Worker's 139,671        18,478          111,227        172,953        2,479             5,233             253,376         196,664        
Grand Total 5,183,203     5,870,536     11,168,783   10,410,009   1,511,595     1,328,008     17,863,580    17,608,553   

Commercial 1,078,836     1,152,948     3,995,557     4,109,732     441,425        488,758        5,515,818      5,751,438     
Government 4,052,124     4,619,186     6,834,199     6,111,929     1,059,043     825,780        11,945,366    11,556,895   
Self Pay 52,242          98,402          339,027        188,348        11,127          13,470          402,397         300,220        
Total Charges 5,183,203     5,870,536     11,168,783   10,410,009   1,511,595     1,328,008     17,863,580    17,608,553   

% of Hospital Charges 23% 26% 38% 35% 6% 5% 66.9% 65.6%

Prior Month
Commercial 1,014,779     1,152,943     3,747,415     4,107,907     306,106        488,759        5,068,300      5,749,609     
Government 4,231,428     4,618,715     6,904,758     6,109,335     925,595        825,781        12,061,781    11,553,831   
Self Pay 132,093        98,397          329,082        188,340        7,882             13,473          469,057         300,210        
Total Charges 5,378,300     5,870,055     10,981,255   10,405,582   1,239,582     1,328,013     17,599,137    17,603,650   

% of Hospital Charges 24% 26% 39% 35% 5% 5% 68.5% 65.6%

Bartlett Regional Hospital
August 2021 Financial Operating Summary

8/38



Type Description Actual Budget
Actual (Over) /  
Under Budget

6010 Mgrs & Supervisors 541,562        536,068        (5,494)                
6020 Techs & Specs 707,560        786,635        79,075               
6030 RN's 879,003        1,056,784     177,781             
6040 Clerical & Admin 408,281        477,740        69,459               
6060 Clinical - Other 417,214        490,820        73,606               
6070 Non-Clinical - Other 325,454        364,807        39,353               
6100 Overtime 223,484        237,225        13,741               
6110 Premium Pay 59,835          16,434          (43,401)              
6120 Shift Differentials 151,337        167,857        16,520               
6130 On-Call 11,535          26,177          14,642               
6090 Non Productive 607,899        489,037        (118,862)            
6105 Premium Pay 0 -                 -                      
6190 Productivity Incentives 6,500             0 (6,500)                

Grand Total 4,339,662     4,649,584     309,922             

6050 Physicians 349,469        317,590        (31,879)              
6500 Contract Labor 146,297        101,317        (44,980)              

Physician Contracts 495,767        418,907        (76,859)              

Bartlett Regional Hospital
August 2021 Wages Summary

9/38



Y:\Financial Analysis\FY 22 Financial Analysis\Dashboards\02 Dashboard Report August 21 Page 1

                                                                                               

                                                  August-21 July-21 August-20

CHANGE 
FROM PRIOR 
FISCAL YEAR

ASSETS                                                                                                        
Current Assets:                                                                                               
 1. Cash and cash equivalents                     18,285,324     18,182,633     37,006,284    (18,720,960)    
 2. Board designated cash                         33,094,973     32,859,823     34,683,672    (1,588,699)      
 3. Patient accounts receivable, net              17,748,521     17,883,171     13,554,959    4,193,562       
 4. Other receivables                             31,400            2,463,186       (137,730)        169,130          
 5. Inventories                                   3,367,771       3,312,784       3,310,671      57,100            
 6. Prepaid Expenses                              2,922,731       3,134,789       2,916,535      6,196              
 7. Other assets                                  30,377            30,377            28,877           1,500              
 8. Total current assets                       75,481,097     77,866,763     91,363,268    (15,882,171)    

Appropriated Cash:                                                                                            
9. CIP Appropriated Funding 18,854,017     13,671,356     4,163,554      14,690,463     

Property, plant & equipment                                                                                   
10. Land, bldgs & equipment                       149,897,827   149,852,618   144,810,898  5,086,929       
11. Construction in progress                      10,769,368     10,421,451     6,324,168      4,445,200       
12. Total property & equipment                    160,667,195   160,274,069   151,135,066  9,532,129       
13. Less:  accumulated depreciation               (102,791,929)  (102,194,394)  (95,384,540)   (7,407,389)      
14. Net property and equipment                    57,875,266     58,079,680     55,750,532    2,124,734       

15. Deferred outflows/Contribution to Pension Plan 12,403,681     12,403,681     12,403,681    -                  
                                                                                                              
16. Total assets                                  164,614,061   162,021,477   163,681,032  933,029          

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE                                                                                    
Current liabilities:                                                                                          
17. Payroll liabilities                           1,435,323       997,915          1,182,037      253,286          
18. Accrued employee benefits                     5,197,548       5,158,114       4,603,108      594,440          
19. Accounts payable and accrued expenses         3,007,066       2,702,311       2,840,648      166,418          
20. Due to 3rd party payors                       2,152,164       99,234            4,250,857      (2,098,693)      
21. Deferred revenue                              611,221          654,388          56,127           555,094          
22. Interest payable                              63,059            -                  65,959           (2,900)             
23. Note payable - current portion                910,000          910,000          870,000         40,000            
24. Other payables                                1,097,658       1,015,582       218,958         878,700          
25. Total current liabilities                  14,474,039     11,537,544     14,087,694    386,345          
                                                                                                              
Long-term Liabilities:                                                                                        
26. Bonds payable                                 16,350,000     16,350,000     17,260,000    (910,000)         
27. Bonds payable - premium/discount              1,026,169       1,040,075       1,197,531      (171,362)         
28. Net Pension Liability                         64,954,569     64,954,569     64,954,569    -                  
29. Deferred In-Flows                              4,318,200       4,318,200       4,318,200      -                  
30. Total long-term liabilities                86,648,938     86,662,844     87,730,300    (1,081,362)      

31. Total liabilities                          101,122,977   98,200,388     101,817,994  (695,017)         
                                                                                                              
32. Fund Balance                                  63,491,084     63,821,088     61,863,038    1,628,046       
                                                                                                              
33. Total liabilities and fund balance            164,614,061   162,021,477   163,681,032  933,029          

BARTLETT REGIONAL HOSPITAL
BALANCE SHEET
August 31, 2021

10/38



Aging by Fin Billed & Unbilled Billed & Unbilled
Grp Unbilled A/R 0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 121-150 151+ A/R Total 8/31/2021 7/31/2021
Aetna $166,730 $443,456 $147,362 $403,992 $153,340 $13,783 $312,161 $1,474,095 $1,640,825 $1,605,927
Blue Cross $298,114 $446,918 $165,946 $14,263 $21,118 $16,686 $567,654 $1,232,585 $1,530,699 $1,241,270
CB 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0
Com $179 $1,484 $56,368 $30,551 $15,688 $1,088 $105,053 $210,232 $210,411 $446,711
Medicaid $1,098,055 $1,041,113 $486,876 $138,855 $113,730 $52,717 $320,768 $2,154,059 $3,252,113 $3,698,842
Medicare $1,335,681 $1,276,071 $80,180 $14,501 $163,776 $203,939 $158,416 $1,896,884 $3,232,565 $4,323,778
 Medicare Rep $35,016 $0 $43,010 $27,756 $21,249 $0 $62,196 $154,210 $189,226 $129,067
Other $56,089 $82,919 $41,602 $0 $47,897 $0 $0 $172,417 $228,506 $141,321
SEARHC $0 $24,864 $500 $1,750 $0 $0 $43,257 $70,371 $70,371 $160,413
Self $12,390 $66,111 $158,160 $76,111 $219,565 $66,019 $1,462,501 $2,048,467 $2,060,857 $2,624,198
VA $16,887 $256,883 $85,226 $111,286 $54,883 $3,850 $35,505 $547,633 $564,521 $305,122
Worker's $20,812 $143,817 $0 $44,688 $0 $34,769 $281,330 $504,604 $525,415 $234,942
in-patient Total $3,039,954 $3,783,637 $1,265,230 $863,752 $811,247 $392,849 $3,348,841 $10,465,557 $13,505,511 $14,911,590

Aetna $659,264 $811,320 $570,756 $198,729 $98,960 $22,632 $755,470 $2,457,868 $3,117,131 $3,315,059
Blue Cross $540,496 $848,894 $543,981 $292,193 $179,983 $16,987 $513,638 $2,395,675 $2,936,171 $2,695,684
CB 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Com $152,317 $192,909 $139,563 $80,504 $14,430 $20,491 $46,162 $494,058 $646,375 $617,540
Medicaid $734,728 $725,964 $330,244 $226,793 $152,992 $71,653 $114,459 $1,622,105 $2,356,833 $2,430,014
Medicare $1,209,369 $1,425,049 $176,770 $69,258 $26,514 $44,884 $142,259 $1,884,734 $3,094,103 $3,442,738
 Medicare Rep $100 $13,879 $7,529 $9,297 $66,413 $100 $18,376 $115,594 $115,694 $73,353
Other $37,758 $109,650 $94,091 $129,214 $39,587 $64,712 $52,058 $489,312 $527,069 $402,409
SEARHC $55,494 $69,664 $23,594 $26,498 $4,400 $397 $71 $124,624 $180,119 $115,108
Self $76,794 $272,733 $530,534 $344,634 $421,738 $272,875 $3,134,702 $4,977,217 $5,054,010 $5,899,155
VA $116,592 $266,418 $229,739 $237,686 $106,670 $24,262 $149,174 $1,013,949 $1,130,542 $969,838
Worker's $13,999 $70,155 $68,779 $298,718 $60,019 $36,560 $217,534 $751,766 $765,764 $687,985
out-patient Total $3,596,910 $4,806,635 $2,715,580 $1,913,525 $1,171,706 $575,553 $5,143,902 $16,326,902 $19,923,812 $20,648,883

Aetna $825,994 $1,254,776 $718,119 $602,721 $252,300 $36,415 $1,067,631 $3,931,963 $4,757,957 $4,920,986
Blue Cross $838,610 $1,295,812 $709,927 $306,455 $201,101 $33,673 $1,081,292 $3,628,260 $4,466,870 $3,936,955
CB $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Com $152,496 $194,393 $195,931 $111,055 $30,118 $21,578 $151,215 $704,291 $856,787 $1,064,251
Medicaid $1,832,783 $1,767,078 $817,119 $365,648 $266,722 $124,370 $435,227 $3,776,163 $5,608,947 $6,128,856
Medicare $2,545,050 $2,701,119 $256,950 $83,759 $190,290 $248,823 $300,675 $3,781,618 $6,326,668 $7,766,516
 Medicare Rep $35,116 $13,879 $50,538 $37,053 $87,662 $100 $80,572 $269,805 $304,921 $202,420
Other $93,846 $192,568 $135,693 $129,214 $87,484 $64,712 $52,058 $661,729 $755,575 $543,730
SEARHC $55,494 $94,528 $24,094 $28,248 $4,400 $397 $43,327 $194,995 $250,489 $275,520
Self $89,184 $338,844 $688,694 $420,745 $641,303 $338,893 $4,597,203 $7,025,684 $7,114,868 $8,523,353
VA $133,480 $523,302 $314,965 $348,972 $161,553 $28,111 $184,679 $1,561,583 $1,695,062 $1,274,959
Worker's $34,810 $213,972 $68,779 $343,406 $60,019 $71,329 $498,864 $1,256,369 $1,291,180 $922,927
Grand Total $6,636,864 $8,590,272 $3,980,810 $2,777,277 $1,982,953 $968,402 $8,492,744 $26,792,458 $33,429,323 $35,560,474

Aged Balance excludes Credit Balances
August-21 July-21

Aging $26,792,458 $28,864,561
Unbilled $6,636,864 $6,695,912
Total $33,429,323 $35,560,474

Bartlett Regional Hospital
Accounts Receivable

8/31/2021

11/38



 
Write-Offs August 2021 

 
 

 

12/38



Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 

 
 
 

DATE: September 3, 2021 

TO: BRH Finance Committee 

FROM: Kevin Benson, Chief Financial Officer 

RE: Surprise Billing Legislation 

 

 

Effective January 1, 2022 the No Surprise Act will be implemented.  Attached is a lengthy document describing 

this legislation, however, this first three pages provides a good summary.  The primary purpose of this 

legislation is to prevent patients being billed from out-of-network providers for uncovered charges.   

This will not impact BRH however, there are a number of physician providing service that may be affected.  

Examples include Radiologists, Emergency Room physicians and Anesthesiologists.  If these groups providing 

service at BRH do not have the same payor contracts as BRH, their bills would be considered out-of-network 

and would subject to the provisions of this legislation. 

It is a common complaint from patients that they receive multiple bills when receiving service at BRH.  If these 

are from out-of-network providers, they are responsible for the entire out-of-network bill.  In the event the 

payor does make a payment on the patient’s behalf the provider is allowed to balance bill the patient for any 

part of the bill. 

This practice has come under criticism throughout the country and this legislation is meant to reduce the out-of-

pocket costs to the patient.  So while this will good for BRH patients, there may be impacts to providers serving 

at BRH.  We are reaching out to these groups to find if they are aware of this legislation.  It seems most are 

aware of it and are preparing for what this means to their practice. 

BRH will be offering a 30 minute session which will summarize this legislation and allow for questions.  More 

information will be forthcoming as the impacts of this legislation is determined.  

13/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 1/25

      

Subscribe/Renew    Cart  Login



 FOLLOWING THE ACA

RELATED TOPICS:
AFFORDABLE CARE ACT | OUT-OF-NETWORK PROVIDERS | COST SHARING | PAYMENT
| HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS | IN-NETWORK PROVIDERS | INSURANCE CLAIMS | BALANCE BILLING
| PATIENT CARE | HOSPITALS | EMERGENCY DEPARTMENTS

Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration
Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act
Katie Keith,  Jack Hoadley,  Kevin Lucia

On July 1, 2021—just in time to meet a statutory deadline set by Congress—the Departments
of Health and Human Services (HHS), Labor, and Treasury, and the O�ce of Personnel

HEALTH AFFAIRS BLOG

JULY 6, 2021  DOI:  10.1377/hblog20210706.903518

14/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 2/25

Management (OPM) issued an interim �nal rule (IFR) to implement key parts of the No
Surprises Act (NSA). The NSA—which was adopted as part of a broader legislative package
in December 2020 and builds on parts of the Affordable Care Act (ACA)—includes
comprehensive new patient protections against surprise medical bills. The IFR was issued
alongside a press release, two fact sheets, and other new materials.

Out-of-network surprise medical bills (also known as balance bills) arise when a consumer
inadvertently or unknowingly receives care from a provider (such as a physician) or at a
facility (such as a hospital) that is not within their insurance plan’s network. This might occur
when a patient is taken to the closest emergency room, which happens to be in an out-of-
network facility—or where the patient seeks care at an in-network hospital and with an in-
network surgeon but is treated by an out-of-network anesthesiologist. Out-of-network
providers and facilities typically charge a higher rate to insurers than an in-network provider,
leading to higher cost sharing for consumers. And, if the insurer refuses to pay the out-of-
network provider’s billed charge, the provider may seek to recover the “balance” by billing the
patient.

This “balance billing” exists in both emergency and non-emergency situations and can lead
to extremely high surprise out-of-pocket costs for patients. The prevalence of surprise bills is
well-documented. Balance billing also has implications for negotiations between payers and
providers, and some providers use the threat of balance billing to obtain higher in-network
reimbursement from payers. The preamble to the IFR—in a section titled “surprise billing and
the need for greater consumer protection” and the economic impact analysis—includes an
excellent summary of these issues. The preamble also documents just some of the
harrowing stories from consumers who have received surprise medical bills and describes
the harmful impact that balance bills (and resulting medical debt) can have on lower-income
Americans, people of color, rural residents, and other underserved and minority communities.

The historic NSA aims to protect patients from the most pervasive types of balance bills for
emergency services (including by air ambulances, although not ground ambulances),
including some services after the patient is stabilized, and non-emergency services at in-
network facilities (unless a patient consents to treatment by an out-of-network provider).
Patients treated by an out-of-network provider will only be responsible for the same amount
of cost-sharing that they would have paid if the service had been provided by an in-network
provider. And providers and facilities are banned from sending balance bills to patients to
collect a higher amount.

15/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 3/25

 

By signi�cantly reducing out-of-network surprise bills, the NSA will reduce out-of-pocket
costs which will, in turn, reduce anxiety, �nancial stress, and medical debt. By reducing these
stressors, and removing �nancial barriers to care, the NSA has the potential to improve
access to care and potentially health outcomes as well. The NSA also establishes a process
to resolve payment disputes between insurers and out-of-network providers—this includes an
open negotiation process with independent dispute resolution (IDR) if negotiations fail. The
law incorporates several guardrails to prevent abuse of this process.

The NSA’s protections go into effect beginning on January 1, 2022, and the federal
government is racing to issue new rules and guidance so that stakeholders understand their
rights and responsibilities under the new law. This IFR addresses only parts of the NSA,
including areas where Congress set a speci�c statutory rulemaking deadline of July 1. Topics
in this IFR include patient cost-sharing protections, notice and consent standards for waivers,
rules for calculating the qualifying payment amount (QPA), disclosure requirements, and
complaints processes, among other standards. The agencies will accept public comment on
the IFR for 60 days after publication in the Federal Register (comments can be made on
related materials for 30 days), but the IFR is expected to go into effect as written.

Additional rulemaking is coming for the remaining parts of the legislation, such as the IDR
process, additional transparency measures, and price comparison tools. The recent uni�ed
agenda suggests that at least two more rules should be expected: another IFR focused on
the IDR process and a proposed rule focused on air ambulances and enforcement. While this
IFR includes many strong consumer and patient protections, the agencies acknowledge that
the true impact of the NSA on overall market dynamics—such as premiums and network
negotiations—cannot be assessed until we have rules on the IDR process. The IFR and these
forthcoming rules are “interrelated,” and the agencies expect to include additional analysis of
the NSA’s broader market impacts in future regulations.

Beyond those immediate topics, there are many other provisions in the NSA that will require
further rulemaking but where the agencies may not be able to issue rules before these
provisions go into effect on January 1, 2022. These topics include transparency in insurance
ID cards, continuity of care, accurate information on provider networks, a ban on gag clauses,
and pharmacy bene�t and drug cost reporting requirements. Even without implementing

Ad

Buy from 300+ categories

 Get off-the-shelf projects, scoped and 
ready to start on Project Catalog™.

Browse Projects

Ad

Upwork

16/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 4/25

rules, those provisions of the statute will still go into effect, and regulated entities are
expected to adopt a good faith, reasonable interpretation of the NSA. Any future rulemaking
will ensure that regulated entities have time to come into compliance with new rules.

The NSA has multiple parts and can be confusing. This post generally divides the topics
included in the IFR into two sections. The �rst section covers topics that directly affect
patients (such as new consumer protections, how to calculate cost sharing, and the
complaints process). The second section covers topics that have a more indirect effect on
patients and are more directed towards regulated entities (such as how to calculate the QPA,
disclosure requirements, and communication between insurers and providers).

Why An IFR?

Federal agencies must typically issue a notice of proposed rulemaking, solicit public
comment on their proposal, review and respond to public comment, and then issue a �nal
rule. But federal agencies can forgo the public comment process when they have “good
cause” to do so. Here, the agencies cite explicit authority to issue IFRs to implement parts of
Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) and the Public Health Service Act and
note that it would be impracticable and contrary to the public interest to delay
implementation of the NSA. Even if the agencies technically had time to undertake full notice
and comment rulemaking throughout 2021, this would not have given stakeholders—whether
regulated entities or state o�cials—enough time to come into compliance with the new rules.
By issuing an IFR, regulated entities and other stakeholders will have more time to adjust
rates, billing practices, and materials (such as notices) ahead of the law’s 2022 effective
date.

Even though the agencies issued an IFR, they request a signi�cant amount of comment to
help inform future rulemaking. Those requests for comment are not summarized here but
touch on a range of issues, including the scope of the IFR, the process for obtaining notice
and consent, data on urgent care centers, the impact of health care consolidation on
reimbursement rates, how to improve the billing process to identify NSA-related claims, and
whether to set a minimum initial payment rate, among other topics. Comment on these and
other topics are due in 60 days.

Building On The ACA: Banning Insurer Practices On Emergency
Services

Before we get to the balance billing-related provisions of the NSA, the IFR includes additional
patient protections that build on the ACA and prohibit restrictive coverage practices for
emergency services by insurers. The NSA readopts Section 2719A of the Public Health
Service Act (which was added by the ACA) and extends the scope of this protection to

17/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 5/25

grandfathered plans beginning in 2022. HHS estimates that there are about 1.8 million non-
federal government plan policyholders and nearly 838,000 policyholders with grandfathered
individual market policies.

Section 2719A has, since 2010, required plans and insurers that cover emergency services to
do so without requiring prior authorization and regardless of whether a provider participates
in the plan’s network. The IFR includes additional clarity on how emergency services must be
covered—and the restrictions that plans and insurers cannot place on emergency care. Plans
and insurers cannot:

Limit the coverage of emergency services based on plan terms or conditions (other than
the exclusion or coordination of bene�ts), waiting periods, or cost-sharing requirements;
Impose limits on out-of-network providers that are more restrictive than those for in-
network emergency care;
Deny coverage for care received in an emergency setting based solely on diagnostic
codes;
Deny coverage for emergency care without �rst applying a prudent layperson standard
(i.e., whether a prudent person would reasonably seek emergency care based on their
symptoms);
Require a time limit between the onset of symptoms and when the patient sought
emergency care or deny coverage simply because symptoms were not sudden; or
Deny emergency services based on general plan exclusions (e.g., denying emergency
coverage for pregnant dependents because a plan excludes dependent maternity care,
an exclusion that advocates argue discriminates on the basis of sex).

These clari�cations will help ensure that patients’ emergency care is covered and that they
will not face a different type of surprise bill when they thought they were having an
emergency only to be told by their insurer that they were not (and that their care would thus
not be covered). These important clari�cations will help limit aggressive attempts by insurers
—UnitedHealthcare most recently but there are others—to refuse to cover emergency
services that the companies later deem non-urgent.

How The NSA Applies

On to the NSA itself, which applies to both payers and providers. In general, the provisions
that apply to payers are promulgated jointly by HHS, Labor, Treasury, and OPM. The
provisions that apply to providers are promulgated by HHS.

Payers

The NSA applies to group health plans as well as health insurers offering group or individual
health insurance coverage with plan or policy years beginning on or after January 1, 2022.

18/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 6/25

This includes coverage in the individual, small group, and large group markets and extends to
self-funded plans, non-federal governmental plans (such as state and local employee bene�t
plans), church plans, grandfathered plans, grandmothered plans, student health insurance,
and insurers that offer coverage through the Federal Employees Health Bene�ts Program
(FEHBP) (which is why OPM is included in the rulemaking). OPM generally adopts the same
provisions, with some clari�cations to integrate with the FEHBP. The IFR also generally
applies to traditional indemnity plans, although these types of plans may have unique bene�t
designs (i.e., no networks) that make parts of the IFR irrelevant.

The NSA does not mandate that all plans or insurers cover the relevant emergency or non-
emergency care covered that falls under the scope of the NSA. But if plans and insurers
cover this care, then the NSA applies. With respect to the individual market, the NSA extends
only to individual health insurance coverage, meaning products that are exempt from this
de�nition (such as short-term limited duration insurance) do not have to comply with the
NSA. The IFR also does not apply to excepted bene�ts, health reimbursement arrangements
(or other account-based plans), or retiree-only plans.

Providers, Facilities, And Air Ambulances

With respect to providers, the NSA applies to physicians and health care providers, health
care facilities, and air ambulances. As discussed below, certain providers and facilities must
also comply with new disclosure requirements to inform patients of surprise billing
protections.

In general, the NSA prohibits providers and facilities from sending balance bills to patients or
otherwise holding patients liable for cost sharing beyond what they would have paid for in-
network care. These protections apply when a patient receives emergency services from an
out-of-network provider or facility, when a patient receives non-emergency services from an
out-of-network provider at an in-network facility, and when a patient receives out-of-network
air ambulance services.

While the NSA bans the most common types of balance bills, it does not prohibit balance
bills in every circumstance. As discussed more below, the protections do not apply if a
patient consents to treatment (and thus higher out-of-pocket costs) by an out-of-network
provider. The NSA also only applies to certain types of items and services, meaning balance
bills can still be sent by providers or facilities that provide non-emergency care that is not
covered under the de�nitions included in the NSA (e.g. outpatient mental health providers or
services delivered in a physician’s o�ce).

To help ensure compliance with this ban, HHS cautions providers, facilities, and air
ambulances against sending bills directly to an individual (as many do now, leaving the
patient responsible for submitting a bill to their plan or insurer for reimbursement) before

19/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 7/25

�rst working with plans and insurers to determine whether the care provided falls under the
NSA. This is consistent with Congress’ goals of preventing patients from being put in the
middle between insurers and providers.

If a provider still sends a balance bill that violates the NSA, HHS can impose civil monetary
penalties of up to $10,000 per violation. These penalties can be waived but only if 1) the
provider did not knowingly violate and should not have reasonably known it violated the NSA;
and 2) the provider withdraws the bill and reimburses the plan or individual plus interest. As
noted above, HHS intends to undertake additional rulemaking on NSA-related enforcement
requirements.

Emergency Services

Patients will be protected from surprise medical bills for emergency services from the point
of evaluation and treatment until they are stabilized and can consent to being transferred to
an in-network facility. Protections will apply whether the emergency services are received at
an out-of-network facility (including any facility fees) or provided by an out-of-network
emergency physician or other provider at either an in-network or out-of-network facility.
Patients cannot waive the NSA’s protections for emergency services, except in limited
circumstances for post-stabilization services (as discussed below).

The NSA de�nes emergency services to include the items and services needed to screen,
treat, and stabilize a patient with an emergency medical condition. An emergency medical
condition occurs when someone has acute symptoms that are su�ciently severe that a
prudent layperson—someone with an average knowledge of health and medicine (i.e., not a
medical professional)—could reasonably expect that immediate medical attention is needed.
The de�nition of emergency services includes a medical screening exam (including routine
ancillary services needed to evaluate someone’s condition), further treatment to stabilize the
individual, and post-stabilization services.

Under the NSA, the de�nition of emergency services includes items or services provided in
emergency departments of hospitals and in independent freestanding emergency
departments. The IFR concludes that emergency services provided at an urgent care center
also fall under the NSA if that urgent care center is appropriately licensed by the state to
provide emergency care.

Post-Stabilization Services

As noted above, the NSA de�nes emergency services to include post-stabilization services,
except under certain conditions. This means that patients are generally protected from
balance bills for post-stabilization services. Post-stabilization services are what they sound
like. This includes additional care that the plan or insurer would otherwise cover that is, in

20/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 8/25

this case, delivered by an out-of-network provider or at an out-of-network facility after a
patient is stabilized. These services fall under the NSA regardless of where in a hospital such
services are furnished; they may be provided as part of outpatient observation or an inpatient
or outpatient stay if provided together with emergency services.

Post-stabilization services are not treated as emergency services under the NSA (meaning a
patient could be legally balance billed) if certain conditions are met. Patients could face
balance bills for post-stabilization services if 1) the patient’s attending emergency physician
or treating provider determines that the patient can travel to an in-network facility using
nonmedical or nonemergency transportation (but the patient opts to stay at the out-of-
network facility); 2) the patient gives informed consent to the out-of-network care (and
agrees to be balance billed for this care); and 3) the provider or facility satis�es any other
conditions laid out by the agencies. Providers and facilities must also comply with relevant
state laws (including, for instance, state laws that prohibit patients from waiving balance bill
protections).

The agencies include additional patient protections in interpreting these conditions and
emphasize that post-stabilization notice and consent procedures should be used sparingly
and in limited circumstances. For instance, a receiving in-network facility must be within a
reasonable travel distance. A patient simply cannot give consent when they are far away
from any in-network providers and unable to use nonmedical transportation. The same is
true if an individual faces unreasonable travel burdens (such as being unable to afford
transport or not well enough to take public transit). These limitations prevent them from
giving consent. When a patient cannot consent, the NSA’s protections continue to apply to
post-stabilization services and the patient cannot be balance billed.

Air Ambulance Services

The NSA applies to air ambulance providers, which have a history of sending extremely high
surprise medical bills to patients with critical medical situations. These protections apply to
medical transport by a rotary-wing air ambulance (e.g., a helicopter), a �xed-wing air
ambulance, and inter-facility transports. The NSA con�rms that its provisions apply to plans
or coverage that cover air ambulance bene�ts (even if there are no current in-network air
ambulance providers). This protection is important because many air ambulance providers
have opted not to join plan networks, instead using balance billing as a business strategy.

Nonemergency Services

The NSA protects patients from being balance billed for nonemergency services provided by
an out-of-network provider at an in-network health care facility. Health care facilities include
hospitals, hospital outpatient departments, critical access hospitals, and ambulatory surgical
centers. The agencies have discretion to identify additional types of health care facilities and

21/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 9/25

are particularly interested in whether urgent care centers or retail clinics should receive this
designation.

For purposes of this provision of the NSA, an in-network facility must have a direct or indirect
contractual relationship with a plan or insurer that covers nonemergency care. This may
include a “single case agreement” where a facility and plan or insurer contract for purposes
of treating a single patient. A single case agreement may be needed if, say, the patient needs
a certain type of specialty care (e.g., pediatric neurosurgery) and the insurer or plan contracts
with a particular facility to obtain this care. In those instances, the facility will be treated as
an in-network facility for purposes of the NSA and that patient cannot be balance billed for
care under the single case agreement, either by the facility or any out-of-network provider at
the facility.

The NSA also bans balance bills for care provided during the “visit” to an in-network health
facility for nonemergency services. The visit may include equipment and devices,
telemedicine services, imaging services, laboratory services, and preoperative and
postoperative services. This means that, in addition to the services provided at the in-
network facility, patients generally cannot be balance billed for these services. This
protection applies even if the provider that furnished those items or services is not physically
located at the in-network facility. This key protection means that a patient who, say, just had
surgery does not have to worry about whether their in-network hospital is sending their labs
to an off-site, out-of-network lab that will lead to a balance bill or that their scans will be read
by an off-site, out-of-network radiologist. Those lab or radiology services would be part of the
individual’s visit to the in-network facility and thus fall under the NSA’s protections.

Notice And Consent

Some of the most common surprise medical bills are sent by nonemergency out-of-network
providers that furnish ancillary services (such as those delivered by a radiologist,
anesthesiologist, or pathologist) or specialty services needed to respond to unexpected
complications (such as those delivered by a neonatologist or cardiologist).

The NSA will prohibit these surprise bills. However, in limited circumstances, a patient can
knowingly and voluntarily agree to use certain types of out-of-network providers. For
instance, if a patient wants to select an out-of-network orthopedist for a knee replacement or
an out-of-network obstetrician for a scheduled delivery, the patient can waive the NSA’s
protections (and thus agree to be charged a balance bill). Because the patient is knowingly
choosing to see an out-of-network provider, the additional cost is no longer a “surprise” to the
patient.

The NSA allows these agreements but also limits the opportunity for many providers to ask a
patient to sign a consent waiver. First, the notice and consent exception only applies in

22/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 10/25

nonemergency situations. Thus, patients cannot be asked to sign a consent waiver for
emergency services (other than post-stabilization services when certain conditions are met)
or air ambulance services. Second, even in nonemergency settings, providers cannot request
a consent waiver 1) if there is no in-network provider available in the facility; 2) for care for
unforeseen, urgent medical needs (whether for nonemergency care or post-stabilization
services); or 3) if the provider furnishes ancillary services that a patient typically does not
select.

All three of these requirements are important, but it is worth emphasizing the third category
since ancillary providers have been a signi�cant source of surprise out-of-network bills.
Ancillary services are de�ned under the NSA to include care related to emergency medicine,
anesthesiology, pathology, radiology, and neonatology; care provided by assistant surgeons,
hospitalists, and intensivists; and diagnostic services (including radiology and laboratory
services). This means these types of providers—or, in some instances, the providers that
offer these types of care—can never ask a patient to sign a consent waiver to be balance
billed for services covered by the NSA.

The NSA allows HHS to identify additional providers that may not ask for a consent waiver.
Federal o�cials considered doing so for providers furnishing inpatient mental health
services, cardiology services, and rehabilitative services. But those providers were not
ultimately included under the IFR, and the agencies instead ask for comment on which, if any,
additional ancillary services should be included. HHS also declines, for now, to identify a list
of advanced diagnostic lab tests that would not be considered ancillary services (and, thus,
for which a patient could be balance billed if the patient consented to a waiver of the NSA’s
protections).

Content Of The Notice And Consent Forms

In the limited situations when a patient can waive the NSA's protections, consent can be
given only after the patient (or an authorized representative acting in the patient's best
interest) has received a written notice that fully informs the patient of the consequences of
waiving these protections. (We �nd it hard to believe that many patients will want to willingly
waive the NSA’s strong protections and agree to pay higher balance bills and thus out-of-
pocket costs, other than in occasional situations where they elect an out-of-network
specialist, surgeon, or obstetrician.)

Providers and facilities must use the standard written notice and consent forms created by
HHS; copies are available here and stakeholders can comment on these materials for the
next 30 days. Although the standard notice must be used, providers and facilities must tailor
the document to each individual patient by �lling in information about the provider/facility, a
good-faith cost estimate of the patient’s estimated charges (including a breakout of separate
services), and whether prior authorization or other care management requirements may need

23/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 11/25

to be satis�ed. The notice must also inform the patient that consent is not required and that
they have the option to seek (or request a referral for) in-network care, and it must provide a
list of in-network providers at the facility. The consent form must re�ect similar tailored
information.

An in-network facility (e.g., hospital) may provide the notice and consent forms on behalf of
an out-of-network provider (e.g., physician). The IFR also allows multiple out-of-network
providers to join on a single notice so that the patient can consent to waiving NSA
protections for multiple providers all at once. This can only be done if the notice identi�es
each provider by name, identi�es the care that each provider will be furnishing, provides a
good faith estimate for each provider’s costs, and gives the option to consent to waive NSA
protections separately for each provider. (Note again that this single notice may not include
providers of ancillary services, who are not allowed to request a consent waiver at all.)

With respect to asking for consent to balance bill for post-stabilization services, out-of-
network emergency facilities must provide a good faith estimate of costs on behalf of both
the facility itself and any out-of-network providers at that facility. If the facility fails to include
all the providers in the good faith estimate, the notice and consent criteria will not be met for
those providers (and the NSA’s protections will still apply, meaning the patient may not be
balance billed).

Notice and consent forms must be translated into the 15 most common languages in the
facility’s geographic region, which HHS interprets to be the 15 most common languages
spoken in the state. Recognizing, however, that common languages can vary signi�cantly
(i.e., the 15 most common languages spoken in a state may not be the most common
languages of those served in a speci�c facility), providers and facilities have �exibility to
select the 15 most common languages applicable to the speci�c geographic region.

A patient cannot give consent if they cannot understand any of the 15 languages. A patient
may not be able to comprehend the notice because their self-reported preferred language is
not among those 15 languages or because they report that they cannot understand the
language in which the forms are provided. If the provider or facility still wants to obtain
consent, they must provide a quali�ed interpreter who can translate in the patient’s self-
reported preferred language for both oral and written communication. Providers and facilities
must also comply with other language access (and disability) requirements, including
Section 1557 of the ACA.

When The Notice Must Be Provided

Consent must be provided voluntarily without undue in�uence, fraud, or duress. To ensure
that patients (or their authorized representative) are truly giving voluntary consent to pay

24/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 12/25

higher out-of-pocket costs, HHS adopts several speci�c procedural requirements for
providing notices and obtaining consent.

The notice and consent forms cannot be buried among other documents and must be given
to the patient separately from other documents. The forms may be provided on paper or
electronically (based on the patient's preference), and the consent document must be signed
by the patient or their representative. A copy of the signed forms must be given to the patient,
and the forms must re�ect the date the notice was provided and the date and time that the
consent form was signed. As noted above, each notice must name a speci�c provider (or
multiple providers) to be valid; a patient cannot agree to waive the NSA’s protections for an
unnamed provider. Written notice and consent documents must be retained for at least
seven years.

Notice and consent must be given at least 72 hours in advance of a scheduled appointment.
If the appointment occurs less than 72 hours after scheduling, notice and consent can be
given on the same day as the appointment was made and must be given at least 3 hours in
advance of the appointment itself. The 3-hour restriction is designed to help ensure that
consent is truly voluntary and help avoid a patient feeling pressure to sign away their rights
under the NSA when, say, an out-of-network specialist simply shows up for a consult during a
hospital stay or when a patient is in a hospital gown awaiting a procedure.

Keep In Mind

Nothing requires a provider or facility to seek consent from a patient to waive the NSA’s
protections. This is entirely up to the providers and facilities, and stakeholders will be
watching to see if and how often providers and facilities ask patients to waive their rights.

The agencies expect that at least some providers and facilities will use notice and consent
waivers: they estimate a cost of more than $99 million annually in time spent by patients and
their families to read and understand these forms, and annual costs to providers and
facilities of more than $117 million annually beginning in 2022 to comply with notice and
consent requirements.

A patient can refuse to provide (or revoke) consent to waive their NSA protections. A patient
can also pick and choose the providers and type of care where they may be willing to waive
the NSA’s protections—including some, none, or all providers or care listed on the notice.
Revocation of consent must be given in writing before the care is provided. For patients who
do not consent or who revoke their consent, the NSA’s protections remain in place. A provider
or facility can refuse to treat the patient if they refuse to consent to being balance billed, but
the patient cannot be charged a fee for an appointment that is cancelled because the patient
will not consent (or revokes consent). Such a fee, the agencies note, would be considered a
form of coercion.

25/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 13/25

The NSA’s standard is generally more protective of consumers than many state laws that
allow for consent waivers. As a result, the NSA’s standards will serve as the minimum �oor of
protection, although states can impose requirements on providers and facilities that are
more protective of consumers. Examples of more protective state laws include laws that
require providers to send waivers further in advance (e.g., 10 business days as in Texas) or
ban consent waivers altogether (e.g. Washington).

Complaints Processes

HHS must establish a complaints process for consumers who have been illegally balance
billed. This process extends to all violations of the NSA by providers, facilities, and air
ambulances. The agencies must also establish a process to receive complaints about NSA
violations by plans and insurers. This extends to all NSA-related consumer protections and
balance billing requirements that apply to plans and insurers, including violations of QPA
requirements.

The agencies will establish one system for all complaints, recognizing that consumers
typically do not know which agency has enforcement authority (whether HHS, the
Department of Labor, state insurance departments, etc.) and the need for a seamless
experience for �ling complaints. They intend to ensure that the complaints process is
accessible, that communication and language needs will be met, and that the information
will be understandable to consumers.

A complaint can be �led verbally or in writing by an individual or their authorized
representative as well as a regulated entity (such as a provider or plan). A complaint need
only include enough information to process and investigate the issue. The agencies
considered, but did not adopt, a standard for how quickly a complaint must be �led after the
time of an alleged violation.

HHS must respond to a processed complaint within 60 business days of receipt. This
response may be oral or written and will inform the complainant about their rights,
obligations, and next steps (such as referring the complainant to another state or federal
resolution process or regulatory entity). HHS may also request additional information to
process a complaint and will make reasonable efforts to notify the complainant of the
outcome of the investigation (including any resolution or corrective action).

HHS expects a total of 3,600 annual complaints about noncompliance with the NSA by
providers, facilities, air ambulances, plans, and insurers. There is signi�cant uncertainty
about the degree to which consumers might �le complaints, but this estimate seems low
given the number of patients covered under the NSA. The complaint systems are expected to
cost about $19 million to develop in 2021 with ongoing costs of about $1.6 million in 2021,
$9.9 million in 2022, $10.1 million in 2023, and $10.3 million in 2024 and subsequent years.

26/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 14/25

Patient Cost-Sharing Protections

Beyond banning balance bills, the NSA limits patient cost sharing. Patients who receive out-
of-network care will only have to pay the cost-sharing amount that they would have paid if the
provider had been in-network. This applies to emergency services, nonemergency services,
and air ambulance services as described above. (So, if a plan requires 20 percent
coinsurance for in-network emergency room visits, the plan can impose a coinsurance rate of
no more than 20 percent for an out-of-network emergency room visit.) This cost-sharing
must also be counted towards a patient’s in-network deductible and annual out-of-pocket
maximum.

Plans and insurers must calculate the relevant cost sharing as if the total amount that would
have been charged by an in-network provider is equal to the “recognized amount” for the
items and services, plan or coverage, and year. The recognized amount is based on the cost
of the item or service as determined by a “speci�ed state law” (more on that below). If there
is no relevant state law (as is the case for many states and most self-funded group health
plans), then cost sharing is based on the provider or facility’s qualifying payment amount
(QPA). The QPA is generally the median of the plan or insurer’s contracted rates for the item
or service in that geographic region. (The statute and IFR also include special rules that
account for all-payer models in states like Maryland; those special rules are not detailed
here.)

The IFR is consistent with the statute but clari�es that patient cost sharing is determined
either by state law or the lesser of the QPA or the provider’s billed charge. This clari�cation
ensures that patients do not face higher cost sharing when a provider bills less than the
median in-network rate. In that instance, a patient’s cost-sharing amount will be based on the
lower billed charges, not the higher QPA. The preamble also emphasizes that patient cost
sharing will not be affected even if the plan or insurer ultimately pays a higher amount to the
out-of-network provider or facility before, during, or after the IDR process.

The NSA’s cost-sharing protections apply equally to air ambulances but there is no
recognized amount because there is no speci�ed state law on air ambulances (since states
are preempted from regulating these providers under the Airline Deregulation Act.) But,
consistent with the other services, plans and insurers must base any coinsurance or
deductible for air ambulance services on the lesser of the QPA or the provider’s billed charge.

Speci�ed State Law

A “speci�ed state law” is a state law that provides “a method for determining the total
amount” that should be paid to an out-of-network provider by a plan or insurer to the extent
that state law applies. In addition to the role of the recognized amount in de�ning patient
cost sharing, state laws that set a payment standard, require IDR, or use a hybrid of both are

27/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 15/25

not displaced by the NSA. A state with such a law can continue applying its method of
determining payment to resolve disputes between insurers and out-of-network providers.

The agencies assert that 14 states have, to date, established a method for determining
payment for emergency or nonemergency services. Those states are not listed or otherwise
identi�ed so it is unclear what basis the agencies used for making this determination; based
on our analysis of state law, we would have expected a higher count of states. Setting that
aside, the recognized amount will be determined using the law in those states for fully
insured plans or policies (and for the limited number of self-funded opt-in programs). But
most claims—an estimated two-thirds—will require calculation of the QPA (discussed in more
detail below).

Deference to the recognized amount under a speci�ed state law only extends as far as state
law applies. If providers or facilities are not covered under state law, disputes with those
providers will be resolved under the NSA. If certain services (e.g., nonemergency services)
are not covered under state law or the provider and insurer are in different states, cost
sharing will be based on the lesser of the QPA or provider’s billed charge, and payment
disputes will be resolved under the federal IDR process.

The preamble includes several examples regarding speci�ed state laws to help illustrate
these distinctions. A state could, for instance, have a “speci�ed state law” that does not
include neonatologists in its de�nition of surgical and ancillary services. This is the case in
Washington State. Because neonatologists are included under the NSA (but not state law),
there would be no speci�ed state law for purposes of the recognized amount or patient cost
sharing. As such, the federal rules for cost-sharing and arbitration (rather than the state’s
payment methodology or process) would apply to any disputes between fully insured plans
and out-of-network neonatologists. The same is true if a state’s law only applied to
emergency services as is the case in Nevada, among other states; the NSA would govern out-
of-network disputes and cost sharing issues for nonemergency services. Disputes arising
when care is delivered in a different state than where the insurer is based will be handled
under the NSA process.

There are some potential state interactions with respect to FEHBP coverage. In general,
FEHBP contract terms supersede and preempt state and local health insurance-related laws.
As a result, the speci�ed state law will not apply even if a federal employee or dependent
lives in a state with balance billing protections. This speci�ed state law will only apply if OPM
and the carrier agree to apply state law for purposes of determining the amount payable. To
the extent that these parties agree to do so, those terms will be made effective in OPM
contracts with carriers. Without such an agreement, the recognized amount for cost sharing
for FEHBP enrollees will be the lesser of the QPA or billed charges. This same principle—that
state law can be incorporated by contract or not—extends equally to state IDR processes: if

28/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 16/25

an FEHBP contract does not explicitly incorporate the state process, then the federal IDR
process will apply.

State Opt-In Programs for Self-Funded Plans

The agencies take the position that ERISA does not prevent states from allowing self-funded
ERISA-covered plans to choose to comply with state law. As such, speci�ed state law applies
for purposes of cost-sharing and payment standards for self-funded plans that have “opted
in” to state balance billing protections. This is currently an option in only a handful of states—
Maine, New Jersey, Nevada, Virginia, and Washington—and the scope of each state’s law
varies. To date, 20 entities have opted into Nevada’s law (for emergency services only), 137
entities have opted into New Jersey’s law, 351 entities have opted into Virginia’s law, and
about 350 entities have opted into Washington’s law. It is not clear how many self-funded
entities have opted into Maine’s relatively new law (for emergency services only).

Self-funded plans that opt in to state payment standards must do so for all items and
services that fall under the state law (i.e., plans cannot pick and choose) and must
prominently display this coverage in plan materials. This will be the only instance in which
the speci�ed state law applies to self-funded group health plans (which are not otherwise
subject to state balance billing restrictions).

Disclosure Requirements 

Plans, insurers, providers, and facilities must post a publicly available notice about the NSA’s
patient protections and balance billing requirements on their websites. Plans and insurers
must also include this disclosure on every explanation of bene�ts for items or services that
fall under the NSA.

Most providers and facilities must additionally provide notice to patients. Because balance
billing is generally prohibited under Medicare, Medicaid, and other public programs, the
disclosure is not relevant for patients with those sources of coverage; as such, the disclosure
need only be provided to those with commercial insurance. Notice must be received no later
than the time when the provider or facility asks for payment (including cost sharing) or
submits a claim. Given how late this often is in the process, it is unclear how effective such a
notice will be (as opposed to, say, requiring the disclosure be provided when the patient
schedules an appointment).

The one-page (double-sided) notice must specify how to contact the appropriate state or
federal agency if a provider or facility violates the NSA. It can be provided in-person, by mail,
or by email. Providers and facilities must also prominently display this information in a
publicly accessible location, such as where patients schedule care, check-in, or pay bills.
This, HHS believes, will make it easier for individuals to be aware of the NSA’s protections

29/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 17/25

before an appointment or before they pay a bill. To help avoid multiple disclosures, this
requirement is satis�ed for providers if their facility agrees to provide this information
(pursuant to a written agreement to do so).

The preamble lays out various requirements that regulated entities must meet to satisfy this
disclosure requirement, including compliance with state and federal language access
standards. HHS encourages the use of plain language and user testing when developing
these notices and urges states to develop model language that re�ects state-speci�c
requirements that may be more protective than the NSA. That said, the agencies released a
model disclosure notice that regulated entities can use; those that do will be considered to
be in good faith compliance with this requirement.

Air ambulances do not have to make the same disclosure, but HHS encourages these
companies to provide clear, understandable information about the NSA. Providers that do not
furnish care in a health facility—such as primary care physicians—do not have to comply with
the disclosure requirement. And disclosures are only required for actual patients who receive
care in a health care facility (or in connection with a visit to a health care facility). These
exceptions are to avoid confusing patients who are in circumstances where the NSA’s
balance billing protections would never apply.

Calculating The Qualifying Payment Amount

The NSA refers repeatedly to the QPA, which is the median of all the plan or insurer’s
contracted rates from January 31, 2019 for a given item or service in that geographic region,
increased for in�ation. As noted above, the QPA affects patient cost sharing in many
instances and is a key factor for arbitrators to consider if and when payment disputes are
resolved through the federal IDR process. Recognizing that it could be challenging to
calculate the QPA, the agencies were directed to clarify and de�ne several components of the
QPA and to issue implementing regulations by July 1, 2021.

The QPA is calculated by taking the contracted rates of all plans or all coverage offered by
the insurer in the same insurance market for the same or similar item or service, that is
provided by a provider in the same or similar specialty or facility of the same or similar
facility type, and provided in same the geographic region. Sounds simple, right? Not at all.
The information below helps de�ne some of these key phrases to help plans and insurers be
prepared to calculate the QPA.

Once plans and insurers have identi�ed their relevant contracted rates, these rates will be
arranged from least to greatest. In general, each contract corresponds to a single number for
this calculation, as detailed below. The plan or insurer will then select the middle number (the
median). If there are an even number of contracts, the plan or insurer will average the two
middle numbers.

30/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 18/25

The agencies estimate one-time costs of nearly $5 billion for insurers and third-party
administrators to make system changes in 2021 to be prepared to calculate recognized
amounts and the QPA. Each plan/third-party administrator and insurer will incur an estimated
average of $2.8 million in one-time costs. This will be followed by total operational costs of
about $2 billion in 2022 and $724 million annually in 2023 and beyond.

Contracted Rates

The contracted rate is the total amount (including cost sharing) that the plan or insurer has
contractually agreed to pay to an in-network provider, facility, or air ambulance provider for
covered items and services. This includes direct or indirect payments, including through a
third-party administrator or pharmacy bene�t manager. The number of contracted rates is
based on the number of contracts with individual providers. When a plan or insurer contracts
with a provider group or facility, the negotiated rate is treated as a single contracted rate. And
each contracted rate is counted once regardless of the number of claims paid at that
contracted rate. If the plan or insurer has multiple contracts that pay the same amount, those
amounts are each counted separately.

Rented networks from a third party will be treated as the plan’s or insurer’s contracted rates
for calculating the QPA. Rates for single case agreements (or other ad hoc arrangements for
individual patients) will not be.

Given some of the unique ways that payment amounts are calculated, the IFR includes
speci�c guidance for determining the QPA for anesthesia services, air ambulance services,
and alternative payment models (such as bundled and fully or partially capitated
arrangements). These calculations are not detailed here. To the extent that alternative
payment arrangements include incentives such as bonuses or penalties, those incentives
must be excluded when calculating median contracted rates. There are also special rules for
unit-based services where reimbursement is set by multiplying the contracted rate by a unit
such as time or mileage.

The contracted rates included in a QPA must be for the “same or similar item or service,”
which is based on items or services with the same or comparable CPT, HCPCS, or DRG
codes. If the plan or insurer varies its contracted rates by specialty or facility (e.g., hospital
ER versus freestanding ER), the QPA should be calculated separately for each type of
provider specialty or facility. This does not, however, extend to characteristics such as
whether a hospital is an academic medical center or teaching hospital. If these facilities had
a separate QPA calculation, patients might face higher cost sharing simply because the
nearest emergency department happened to be a teaching facility.

For air ambulances, all air ambulance service providers (including inter-facility transports)
will be treated as a single provider specialty under the NSA. This is true regardless of the type

31/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 19/25

of aircraft (e.g., �xed-wing versus rotary-wing) or revenue model (e.g., hospital-based air
ambulance provider versus independent non-hospital-based air ambulance provider).

The QPA for items and services provided in a given year is based on the median contracted
rate as determined on January 31, 2019 and in�ated forward to that year. Speci�cally, the
QPA for 2022 is increased by the percentage increased in the CPI-U (not medical price
growth) for 2019, 2020, and 2021. The QPA for 2023 or subsequent years will then be
adjusted annually according to the CPI-U. The IFR gives guidance on how plans and insurers
should make this calculation each year.

Insurance Market

The QPA is based on the plan’s or insurer’s contracted rates in the same insurance market as
where the out-of-network claim arises. The IFR de�nes the “insurance market” to be the
individual market, small group market, or large group market as de�ned under federal law.
Limited forms of coverage (such as short-term plans, excepted bene�ts, and health
reimbursement arrangements or other account-based plans) and Medicare Advantage plans
or Medicaid managed care plans generally do not fall under these market de�nitions so
negotiated rates for these products (to the extent there are any) should not be included in the
QPA calculation.

For self-funded group health plans, the relevant “insurance market” is all group health plans
offered by that employer or plan sponsor. Alternatively, an employer or plan sponsor that
uses a third-party entity can direct the third-party administrator to calculate the QPA on their
behalf using all group health plans that are administered by that entity. By allowing this
packaging of data, the agencies believe there will be few instances where a group health plan
sponsor lacks information to calculate the relevant QPA.

Geographic Regions

In addition to the caveats and de�nitions noted above, the QPA re�ects the contracted rates
for care provided in same the geographic region. The NSA directed the agencies to consult
with the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) in de�ning the geographic
regions for the QPA. The NAIC recommended geographic regions that correspond to those
used in the individual and small group markets under the ACA (with �exibility). The agencies
considered, but did not adopt, this approach, although it used broad principles suggested by
the NAIC.

Instead, the IFR de�nes each metropolitan statistical area (MSA) in a state as a region and all
other portions of the state as one region. When an MSA crosses a state boundary, it is
divided between the respective states: all counties in a particular MSA in each state are
counted as a geographic region. This de�nition of a geographic region applies to all items

32/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 20/25

and services other than air ambulance services (where the geographic region is based on the
point of pick-up and de�ned as one region that includes all MSAs in a state and one region
with all other portions of the state).

Basing the de�nition on MSAs will result in larger geographic regions than the county-based
regions used in some state rating areas. This, in turn, helps limit the impact of outlier rates in
a smaller geographic region—and limits the instances when a plan or insurer would not have
su�cient information to calculate the QPA.

Insuf�cient Information

The NSA lays out an alternative to the QPA if a plan or insurer lacks su�cient information to
calculate the median of contracted rates in 2019 (or for newly covered items or services in
future years). But the agencies make clear that this alternative method should be used
sparingly.

The IFR �rst identi�es what quali�es as su�cient information to calculate the QPA. An
insurer or plan has su�cient information if it has at least three contracted rates in the
insurance market on January 31, 2019. Having at least three rates reduces the possibility of
outliers that could skew the QPA.

For years following 2019, plans and insurers must have at least three contracted rates for the
prior year and those rates must account for at least 25 percent of the total claims volume
(for the relevant item or service for that year for all plans or coverage in the same insurance
market). The latter requirement is to prevent plans and insurers from manipulating the QPA
by using selective contracting practices that arti�cially change the median contracted rate.

If a plan or insurer has insu�cient information to calculate the median contracted rate in a
given MSA, it must then consider all MSAs in the state to be a single region. All other parts of
the state will still be treated as a different region. If there is still insu�cient information, the
geographic region will be based on Census divisions; this is true for all items and services
(including air ambulance services), again treating MSAs and non-MSA areas separately.

Plans and insurers that may not initially have enough information to calculate the QPA can
gain this information over time. Once they do, the QPA must be calculated using the median
contracted rate for the �rst year when it has su�cient information; the rate is then in�ated to
future years by the CPI-U.

Where a plan or insurer has insu�cient information to calculate the median contracted rate,
the plan or insurer can select a third-party database to calculate the QPA. The database must
not present a con�ict of interest and must have data about allowed amounts in the
applicable geographic region. State all-payer claims databases can automatically be used;
other databases can be used if they satisfy conditions outlined in the IFR (such as not being

33/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 21/25

a�liated with a health care entity and having data on in-network amounts). The preamble
includes speci�c instructions for how to use a database to calculate the QPA if needed and
directs plans and insurers to use a consistent methodology when relying on a database.

These rules apply in the same way for plan sponsors or insurers that newly offer coverage in
a geographic region. If a new service code is created (or service codes are signi�cantly
revised) after 2019, plans and insurers must look to reasonably related service codes from
the prior year and use this as a benchmark for the QPA for the new code. This amount must
then be adjusted based on the ratio of the Medicare rate for the new code to the Medicare
rate for the related code. The preamble identi�es alternatives if Medicare has not yet
established a payment rate. Once the plan or insurer has experience with and thus su�cient
information for the new code, the QPA process above will be used.

QPA Audits

The NSA requires an audit process to ensure that plans and insurers are complying with the
QPA calculation and requirement. The audit may be performed by federal or state o�cials,
depending on the entity enforcing the NSA, but the IFR does not include additional detail
about this process or the agencies’ broader approach to enforcement. Enforcement will be
addressed in a subsequent rule.

Communication Between Insurers and Providers

Initial Payment Amount

To help resolve out-of-network billing disputes in a timely manner, the NSA and IFR requires
plans and insurers to make an initial payment (or send a notice of denial of payment) within
30 calendar days after the provider or facility submits a clean claim, as determined by the
insurer. The initial payment should re�ect the amount that the plan or insurer intends to be
payment in full (not a �rst installment) and must be made even where the patient has not
satis�ed their deductible.

The agencies did not give guidance on the dollar amount of any initial payment, but they
solicit comment on whether they should do so in the future and, if so, how to set the rate or
methodology for initial payments (e.g., speci�c percentage of the Medicare rate or the QPA).
Their goal with initial payments is to help resolve payment disputes before the IDR process.

If the provider or facility accepts the initial payment amount (plus the patient’s cost sharing),
this amount will be treated as the “out-of-network rate.” The out-of-network rate is the total
payment made by the plan or insurer to the out-of-network provider, facility, and air
ambulance. This rate must be based on a speci�ed state law; an agreed upon amount
between the parties (if there is no speci�ed state law); or the amount ultimately determined
by the IDR entity. (Again, the statute and IFR include a special rule to re�ect all-payer

34/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 22/25

models.) An agreed-upon amount could be reached during negotiations ahead of the IDR
process or even after the IDR process is initiated.

Notice And Consent

Out-of-network providers that perform nonemergency services at an in-network facility must
inform plans and insurers, as part of their submission of a claim, that the item or service that
they provided was furnished during a visit to an in-network facility. And all providers and
facilities must inform plans and insurers when a patient consents to out-of-network care
(and thus a potential balance bill). Plans and insurers need this information to accurately
calculate cost sharing, apply this cost sharing to deductibles and out-of-pocket limits, and
make an appropriate payment to the provider or facility.

In particular, the provider or facility must submit a signed copy of the written notice and
consent forms to the plan or insurer. Plans and insurers can rely on the provider’s or facility’s
representation (that the patient gave consent) unless it knows or reasonably should know
otherwise. If the plan or insurer believes notice was not properly and timely given and
received, it should apply cost sharing consistent with the rules outlined here under the NSA
and �le a complaint against the provider.

The QPA

Plans and insurers must share certain information about the QPA with out-of-network
providers and facilities. To balance transparency with administrative burdens, the IFR
requires plans and insurers to make certain disclosures with each initial payment or notice of
denial of payment. They must disclose 1) the QPA for each item or service involved; 2) a
statement certifying that the QPA is the recognized amount (for purposes of patient cost
sharing) and was calculated in compliance with the methodology in the IFR; 3) a statement
con�rming the option for a 30-day open negotiation period to determine the total payment
amount followed by initiation of the IDR process within 4 days of the end of the open
negotiation period. The provider or facility can request additional information, which must be
provided. Details on how negotiations and IDR will work will be addressed in a subsequent
rule.

Cost Estimates

The agencies estimate that sharing this information will result in costs to insurers and third-
party administrators of about $55 million annually beginning in 2022. These estimates are
linked to other estimates of how prevalent out-of-network billing could be. The agencies
expect plans and insurers to have to provide an initial payment or denial for nearly 4.8 million
claims for emergency services, more than 222,000 claims for post-stabilization services, and

35/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 23/25

 
 

Related

CONTENT 

nearly 60,000 claims for nonemergency services. This is a total of about 5.1 million claims
annually.  

The agencies also seem to expect many patients to consent to balance bills. For post-
stabilization care, the agencies guess that consent cannot or will not be given in 50 percent
of cases (but that it will in half of cases). For nonemergency services, the agencies expect
that the patient will give consent in 95 percent of those cases. As noted above, we question
whether consent will be given so frequently since 1) it will be available in such limited
circumstances and 2) we �nd it hard to believe that many patients will want to willingly waive
the NSA’s strong protections and agree to pay higher out-of-pocket costs.

A Good First Step

The NSA includes historic patient protections that will promote �nancial stability for millions
of Americans who should, by and large, no longer need to worry about a surprise out-of-
network bill. This initial IFR is a strong �rst step in making many of the new law’s consumer
protections a reality. As noted above, additional rulemaking will be just as important to
making sure that patients do not face higher premiums as a result of the NSA and to
clarifying additional protections and provisions.

ⓘ

36/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 24/25

Following The ACA

Affordable Care Act

Out-Of-Network Providers

Cost Sharing

Payment

Health Care Providers

In-Network Providers

Insurance Claims

Balance Billing

Patient Care

Hospitals

Emergency Departments

Cite As

“Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act, " Health
Affairs Blog, July 6, 2021.
DOI: 10.1377/hblog20210706.903518

TOPICS 

1220 19th Street, NW, Suite 800

Washington, DC 20036

T 301 656 7401

F 301 654 2845

37/38



10/5/21, 1:40 PM Banning Surprise Bills: Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act | Health Affairs

https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20210706.903518/full/ 25/25

Terms and conditions  Privacy  Project HOPE

Health Affairs is pleased to offer Free Access for low-income countries. Health Affairs gratefully acknowledges the support of many
funders.  

Project HOPE is a global health and humanitarian relief organization that places power in the hands of local
health care workers to save lives across the globe. Project HOPE has published Health Affairs since 1981. 

Copyright 1995 - 2021 by Project HOPE: The People-to-People Health Foundation, Inc., eISSN 1544-5208.

customerservice@healthaffairs.org

TOPICS
Access & Use
Costs & Spending
COVID-19
Health Equity
Health Reform
Leading To Health
More Topics

CONTENT
Journal
Blog
Briefs
Events
Podcasts
Collected Works

INFORMATION FOR
Authors
Request For Abstracts
Reviewers
Subscribers
Advertisers
Media News Room
Funders
Event Attendees

SERVICES & RESOURCES
Submit Content
Subscribe/Renew
Manage My Account
Purchase Content
Permissions
Alerts
Newsletter Sign Up
Advertising Kit

HEALTH AFFAIRS
About
Terms & Conditions
Privacy Policy
Jobs At Health Affairs
Contact Us

38/38


	000 - 10 8 2021 Finance Committee Meeting Agenda
	September 10, 2021 Minutes
	August Financial Summary
	Statistics
	Financial Indicators
	Income Statement
	Revenue Worksheet
	Wages
	Balance Sheet
	Accounts Receivable
	Write-Offs
	10 - Surprise Billing Memo
	11 - Banning Surprise Bills_ Biden Administration Issues First Rule On The No Surprises Act _ Health Affairs

